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1.2

1 Foreword

The people of Fiskertorhave an inheritance which is not wholly theirs, but rather is a gift

which must be cared for and handed on. Such an idea of inheritance finds an apt symbol

ET 30 #1 Ai A1 060 #EOOAE8 4EEO AAAOOEAOI EIT OO
carefully restored in the nineteenth, and continues its presence and mission now in the
twenty-first. We are tasked today with ensuring that Fiskerton carries on for centuries

further in a way that preserves what we love while providing for future needs.

Rural villages today are faced with a difficult balancing act between preserving the
characteristics which make them so attractive and meeting the demand for new housing
across the country. With this Neighbourhood Plan, Fiskerton is leading the way by
providing a model for sensible, wellthought-out, limited growth. Through engaging
communities to seek out opportunities for growth that are sustainable, gradual, and that
take into account the varied needs of a village in its regional context, we can ensure that
the Lincadnshire we know and love is both adapted and preserved for future generations
to come.

Sir Edward Leigh MP



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Neighbourhood Plan Process

In April 2012 the Localism Act 2011 amended the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
introducing new rights and powers to allow local communities to shape new
development in their community by preparing a Neighbourhood Development Plan
(NDP), which canestablish general planning policies for the development and land use in
the neighbourhood which the plan covers.

Neighbourhood Plans are a new type of statutory plan. Not only are they intended to be
produced by local people for their own areas, they also have to be approved by a
referendum of the people living in that area. Unlike national planning policy, which is
approved by Parliament, or local planning policy, which is approved by the local
authority, a NDPcan only be brought into force following a majority vote by residentsf
the Neighbourhood Area.The Fiskerton NDP will be a statutory planning policy
document supported by a majority of local people which will enable local people and
Fiskerton Parish Council to have a greater and more positive influence on hdhe village
develops up to 2036 The Parish Council intends to monitor the progress of development
over this period and review theNDP against actuahew development.

Neighbourhood Plans are part of the statutory planning system. This means that when
decisions are made on planning applications the policies and proposals in th®Pmust

be taken into account ly WestLindsey District Council The current development plan for

the Fiskerton area is the West Lindsey Local Plan 2006 which will be replaced by the
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan once it has been adopted May 2017. The Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan idenE £ZEAO & EOEAOOI T A0 A hidsdaEOI
otherwise promoted via a neighbourhood plan(these settlementg will accommodate a
limited amount of development in order to support their function and/or sustainability8 6

/' TAA OEA . $ 0wilEaBo bd takkedidtd corQideEativn.

The qualifying body bringing forward this NDP is Fiskerton Parish Council. The Plan
applies to the Parish of Fiskerton in the West Lindsey District of Lincolnshire. In
accordance with Part 2 of the Regulations West hdlsey District Council, the local
planning authority publicised the application from Fiskerton Parish Council and
advertised a six week consultation period. The application was approved by WLDC on
28th August 2014 and the Fiskerton Parish was designated as Neighbourhood Plan
Area. The Neighbourhood Plan Area shown in Figure 1.

o



Figure 1:Fiskerton Neighbourhood Plan Area

Fiskerton Parish
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1.7 Whilst the purpose of the NDP is to allow local people to have a greater say in the
development of their areas, each NPD mube in line with, and not contradict National or
local level planning policy. Paragraph 8 of Schedule 4B to the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 requires that NDPs must:
I.  Have appropriate regard to national policies and advice contained in the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)and
II.  Contribute to the achievementof sustainable developmentand
lll.  Be in general conformity with the strategic policies in thdocal plan for the area,;
and,
V.

Be compatible with EU obligations, including human rights requiremets.



1.8

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Community Infrastructure Levy

A Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is to be adopted over the lifetime of the
T AECEAT OOETT A PIAT8 'O PAOO 1T &£ #), OEA
bi OOEI 16 OEAO AAT AA OPATO 11 AiiiO1EOU EIBbBC

village. Once theNDPis made the Parish Cancil will receive 25% of the levy receipts for
new developments within the NDP area. In Appendix Athere is a list of Community
Projects that the Parish Council will look to spend the Community Infrastructure Levy on
and also seek other funding to bringhese projects forward

2 History ofFiskerton

Fiskerton lies some five miles east of Lincoln on a back road to Bardney and Wragby that
hugs the fen edge just above the floodline. The settlement lies on the northern side of the
wide Witham valley with only two fields lying between the village and the present course
of the river. In the period after the last glaciation the river and valley offered a route for
travel and opportunities for fishing and hunting, and from the earliest times man has used
the valleyfor access to the interior and its resources. The richness of the archaeological
record in the valley, from Neolithic times onwards, has led archaeologists to see the
Witham valley as second only to the Thames in archaeological importance. The river gave
access to what became Fiskerton to early man so that the village and parish are
particularly rich in important vestiges of the past.

Given the location of the village it is not surprising that the name Fiskerton means the
settlement of the fishermen. Norgiven the importance of access by river, is it surprising
that the name has Anglo Saxon and, later Scandinavian elements. It is thought that the
Anglo Saxons arrived in Lincolnshire at the end of the fifth/early sixth century while the
Danes had overrun ou area by theend of the ninth century. The Gurch has many
Norman features and theremains of theonly round tower in the county according to
some authorities.

Two excavations in Fiskerton in 1981 and 2001 revealed a wefireserved Iron Age
wooden causewd dating from about 457BC The causeway would have had practical uses
as a route over waterlogged ground but the richness of the associatedefacts and the
fact that boats were revealed as having been pegged down, not sunk accidentally, reveal
that high status, expensive goods were deposited deliberately. The excavations produced
a number of associated finds, including metal work and iron swords. Some of the finds
are unique, such as the first steel aximund in Britain.

Earlier, Bronze Age, activity is @denced by finds in the core village area as well as in
other parts of the parish. Such finds in the village include Bronze Age axes like those
below. Burial mounds from the period have been located near the village.



2.5 Evidence for early domestic actiity, i.e. associated with a settlement, was discovered in
what became the churchyard in the heart of the village when a beehive quern, certainly
Ei BT OOAA £OT 1 Al OAxEAOA AO OEAU xAOA 110 poOI
provides good evidencefor late Iron Age/early Roman domestic activity in the



2.6

churchyard area,as it is unlikely to have travelled far at the end of its useful life. This area
is part of the core area of the present village.

The archaeological record continues into the Roman and later eras with evidence for
farming, living and transport in the Roman period and for manorial actiwy .



lllustrative map __1: Locations of Important Archaeological sites Referred to in this

Section
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Piper Hills Field has Romano British finds, a fragment of an Anglo Saxon funerary urn
plus large amounts of stone. Medieval toft and croft sites have been identified on part
of the field

Churchyard finds include a Bronze Age axe hammer, beehive quern

Rear of Perrins' cottages [now demolished] and Five Mile House, Romano British finds
associated with a landing area for boats

Allotments [also known as Church Piece and earlier as Oysier Bank] a hoard of Bronze
Age socketed axes found in 1890.

Fiskerton Iron Age Causeway, approximate alignment. Many associated finds.

PS Fourteenth century manor house remains: written evidence corroborates the activities
here



2.7

2.8

2.9

Population Growth

The short table below indicates the fluctuations in the population numbers in Fiskerton
from 1801 to 2011.

1801 |1851 |1861 |1891 |1901 |1911 |1951 |1961 |1991 |2011
270 463 524 423 386 399 977 567 955 1209

The population grew in the first half of the nineteenth century, reaching a peak in 1861
when agriculture was in a period of prosperity and when farm workers were hired in
large numbers. It had dropped by 1881 and again in 1891 and was down to 386 in 1901
due to the major depression in farming and the growth in factory jobs in Lincoln paying
higher wages. In the post war period there were jobs in the village at the Tanya knitwear
factory from 1948 to 2006 when it finally closed and at the Royal Observer Gus as well
as the possibility of commuting into Lincoln. The Corps closed around 1991 and the
premises were bought by Primetake who now run a business there providing some
employment opportunities.

Growth of the Settlement

There were signs of very early buses and plots [tofts and crofts] on the edge of the village
in the last field on the leftcoming from the Lincoln/Cherry Willingham road but these
have mainly been ploughed out now. The core of the present village is grouped around
the area known todayas the ManorFarm Paddock, an area of open space of 4.253 acres
(1.7 hectares)which forms the setting for the @urch and Manor Farm, both of which are
listed buildings, Grade 1 and Grade 2. Théhurch has many Norman features while
Manor Farm was built inthe eighteenth century, possibly incorporating stone from the
much older manor house nearby. Other important buildings framed by the paddock are
The Carpenters Arms pub and 2 former pubs, Five Mile House and The Lord Nelson The
paddock is the central featire of the village and it is what gives the village its character.

2.10 The road north of the paddock is now called Chapel Road but was formerly Town Street

or Back Lane, along which there were a few of farmsteads before modern development
took place.

2.11 The roadto the south of the paddock linked the Gurch with the fourteenth century

manor house at the bottom of what was then the street of Dornthorpe, now Nelson Road:
the paddock was part of the manorial demesne or home farm, lying very close the
manorial buildings at the end of the street of Dornthorpe. The houses along the stretch of
High Street from theChurch and those to the south of Nelson Road were built on ancient
plots above the flood level and with long plots behind them.

2.12 The number of houses in the meteenth entury increased slightly wheninfilling began

and more houses were crammed onto existing plots. Housing began to spread eastwards



in the latter half of the century when five cottages for agricultural labourers were built
by the Ecclesiastical Gmmissioners on Ferry Road (opposite the school).

2.13 In the early twentieth century the settlement saw the first few council houses built, also
along Ferry Road.

2.14 In the twentieth century development has taken place mainly to the easdlong Ferry
Road, until the larges scale development at Chapel Riseorth of Chapel RoadUp to the
early twentieth century there were a number of farmhouses both in the village and
dispersed throughout the parishwith most
of the other housesclustered loosely around
the village core. Subsequent development in
the twentieth century has takenplace mainly
to the east alongrerry Road until the Chapel
Rise estate was built later in thecentury.

Post War
Development

2.15 The greatest change in the housingtock
came in the Second WorldWar when the
airfield was built to the north of the village,
along the Reepham Road. The 1150 airmen
and women stationed in Fiskerton by 1944
were accommodated on sites in and near the
village in Nissen style huts.

1960
Development

The acute housing shortage after the war led
the then Welton Rural District Council to
OAEOOAEOGE 1 AT U 1T & OERA
known, and by May 1948 around 179 families
were housed this way. The subsequent rise in
the post war population is reflected in the
1951 census. This was only ever meant to be
A OAiI pT OAOU Oi 1 O0ET I
first major new building programme was
underway. Welton Rural District Council
completed the High Meadows council housing
estate of 35 houses, on a plotarth of Chapel _X
21 AA ET OEA T EA pwumd
closed down. Some additional council housing
was provided, most notably on The Crescent,
which included housing for the elderly. Any
former council houses that have not been sold
privately are now owned by a Housing
Association, ACIS.
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